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(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
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(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements.
The unaudited financial statements are filed as part of this Form 17-Q.
Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations.
The following is a discussion and analysis of the financial performance of CTS Global Equity Group, Inc.
The discussion aims to provide readers with an appreciation of its business model and the key factors
underlying its financial results. The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the unaudited financial
statements of the Company filed as part of this report.
Company Overview
CTS Global Equity Group, Inc. (“CTS”, “CTS Global”, or the “Company”) is a proprietary trading firm
with more than thirty individual traders that actively trade the firm’s capital in the Philippine, Hong Kong,
Japan, US, and in the future, other equity markets.
Established in 1986, the Company is one of the local pioneers in proprietary trading. Through the years, it
has developed important intellectual property assets, specifically dealing with risk management,
macroeconomics analysis, and fundamental, and technical analysis that allows it to capitalize on
opportunities in the local and global stock markets.
Currently, the Company’s pool of more than 30 individual traders actively manages its capital. Each trader
is considered as a separate profit center with its own unique trading system. Though the trading strategies
are inherently diverse, the development and application of every distinct trading technique still falls within
the overarching trading system and rules of the Fundamentals, Technicals, Sentiment, and Risk
Management (FTSR) Trading Framework. This framework has been developed for 40 years and is still
constantly improving under the Caylum Trading Institute (“Caylum”), the Company’s sister company in
the trading education segment.
Business Model
Proprietary Trading. As its main revenue source, the Company has more than thirty traders acting as
individual profit centers who actively trade the Philippine and global equity markets, mainly US, Hong
Kong, and Japan. These traders consistently generate returns using the firm’s capital, training ecosystem,
analytics and risk management infrastructures.
This business segment will remain to be the Company’s largest revenue contributor in the foreseeable future.
For the first quarter of 2022, global proprietary trading made up 43% of the total Proprietary Trading
revenues, while the other 57% is from the Philippine market.
Brokerage Services. As one of the PSE Trading Participants, CTS Global renders stock brokerage and
dealership services at a fee for high net-worth clients. Revenues from this side are in fixed commissions
based on the transaction amounts.
Investment Income. Aside from giving an overall guidance to the trading house’s market and foreign
exchange exposure, the Macroeconomics Desk and the Global Research team within CTS Global likewise
invests in assets with a longer-term horizon.
Future Business Segment: Client Account Management. With plans to officially launch in 2023, the
Company intends to provide investment management and other financial advisory services on behalf of its
clients with the goal of growing the client’s portfolio over time while mitigating risk. This segment’s model
is currently in its testing phase with a model portfolio.
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Industry and Economic Review
The general equity markets exhibited high amounts of volatility amidst global economic developments. For
the first quarter of 2022, the main markets of CTS Global, the United States, Hong Kong, and the
Philippines, experienced market volatility. The benchmark indices of each market exhibited first quarter
returns of -5.18%, -5.98%, and +1.43% respectively.
A major catalyst for the negative performance of the equity markets has been the conflict between Russia
and Ukraine which escalated into a series of headwinds including export bans on major commodities like
oil, coal, wheat, and metals. The ongoing war has exacerbated an already over-heating economy with global
inflation concerns expected to be sustained in the short term.
In addition to the uncertainty of the global economy, there were also major Covid-19 breakouts in several
cities in China as well as Hong Kong. This led to a slowdown in economic productivity as major cities went
into a lockdown for several weeks. However, the Covid-19 situation in both the United States and the
Philippines have improved given increased vaccination rates and better management of existing cases.
With the US 10-Year Treasury Bond quickly rising due to investor risk aversion, markets have taken a riskoff stance and equities are now exhibiting a lack of interest and participation as investors flood to safer,
more stable asset classes. High growth stocks in the US market have sold-off due to the lack of speculation
and investor confidence, however commodities, both direct and indirect beneficiaries, have recently thrived
given the backdrop of economic unrest. It is uncertain how long it will take investors to turn back to equities
as the markets price in the increase in interest rates and input costs.
Given the ongoing concerns, interest rates in the US have started rising with markets taking a risk-off stance.
Equities are now exhibiting a lack of interest and participation as investors flood to safer, more stable asset
classes. It is uncertain how long it will take investors to turn back to equities as the markets price in the
increase in interest rates and input costs.
Business Review
Key Performance Indicators
Revenue/ Capital Stock Ratio (1)
Gross Margin (2)
Net Margin (3)
Global Trading Revenues (in millions)
Local Trading Revenues (in millions)
Net Liquid Capital (4) (in millions)
Risk-Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA)
Ratio (5)

March 31, 2022
7.0%
62.2%
52.4%
=13.9
P
=18.6
P
=605.9
P
1,154%

March 31, 2021
17.7%
50.7%
32.3%
=58.7
P
=25.8
P
=497.9
P
1,045%

(1) Revenue/Capital Stock Ratio is computed as revenues divided by the capital stock. This is a metric of
the firm’s efficiency in producing profits out of capital.
(2) Gross margin is computed as the gross profit over total revenues, indicating the firm’s cost efficiency
in relation to revenues.
(3) Net margin is the net income over total revenues.
(4) Net Liquid Capital (NLC) is the Equity Eligible for Net Liquid Capital of a Broker Dealer, adjusted for
non-allowable current and non-current assets. The Company is required, at all times, to have an NLC
of at least ₱5.0 million or 5% of its Aggregate Indebtedness, whichever is higher.
(5) RBCA Ratio is computed as NLC divided by its Total Risk Capital Requirement. The Company is
required, at all times, to meet at least 110%. The ratio ensures that the Company has sufficient capital
to sustain operating losses, if any, while maintaining a safe and efficient market.
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Material Changes in Financial Condition (March 31, 2022 vs December 31, 2021)
CTS’s asset base increased by 15.4% to =
P1.1 billion as of end March 2022 compared to its end 2021
level.
Cash increased by 14.5% to =
P508.7 million as of end March 2022 largely due to =
P21.9 million cash
generated from operations and partial deposits for future stock subscriptions received amounting to P
=42.9
million as of end March 2022 in relation to the Company’s listing with Philippine Stock Exchange on
April 13, 2022.
Financial assets at FVPL increased by 5,147,832.3% to =
P106.1 million as of end March 2022 largely due
to outstanding equity securities held locally and abroad amounting to =
P77.1 million and =
P29.0 million,
respectively.
Trade receivables fell by 4.2% to P
=389.3 million. This was largely due to drop in the value of receivables
from the clearing house as there were fewer selling transactions as of end March 2022 compared to the
last three trading days of 2021.
Other current assets fell by 39.5% to =
P6.0 million. This was mainly due to the application of available
excess tax credits against the corporate income tax due for the first quarter of 2022 amounting to P
=4.2
million.
Property and equipment decreased by 7.2% to =
P10.3 million mostly due to depreciation.
Net deferred tax assets decreased by 77.2% to =
P0.7 million mostly due to increase in deferred tax liability
by =
P2.1 million arising from the Company’s unrealized foreign exchange gain on its US dollardenominated deposits with brokers.
Trade payables increased by 26.5% to P
=418.7 million for the year-to-date period. This was largely due to
the higher value of buying transactions as of end March 2022 compared to end December 2021, raising
the value of payables to the clearing house by =
P34.8 million. Meanwhile, the clients’ undeployed funds
increased by =
P51.7 million.
Other current liabilities were lower by 43.4% at =
P5.0 million mainly due to payments in first quarter of
2022 of accrued expenses as of end December 2021.
Stockholders’ equity was up by 10.7% to =
P649.2 million due to the booking of =
P20.1 million in net
income during the first quarter of 2022 and partial deposits for future stock subscriptions received
amounting to =
P42.9 million as of end March 2022.
Material Changes in the Results of Operations (March 31, 2022 vs March 31, 2021)
CTS’s revenues during the first quarter of 2022 decreased from P
=88.7 million to P
=38.4 million or by
56.7%. Cost of services decreased by 66.8% to =
P14.5 million, largely due to decrease in commission
expenses, personnel costs, and transaction costs to complete proprietary trading transactions. Meanwhile,
operating expenses, which are largely fixed in nature, also decreased by 21.0% to P
=6.0 million. Other
income increased by 199% to =
P8.7 million largely due to unrealized foreign exchange gain booked as of
end March 2022. Provision for income taxes decreased by 44.1% to =
P6.5 million as operating profits
declined by 34.0% to =
P26.6 million. Because of the foregoing movements, net income stood at P
=20.1
million in the first quarter of 2022.
CTS’s revenues decreased by 56.7% to =
P38.4 million largely due to lower trading gains on proprietary
trading from both local and global stock markets as equity markets, in general, exhibited high amounts of
volatility amidst global economic challenges.
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Cost of services decreased by 66.8% to =
P14.5 million mainly due to lower commission expenses booked
as of end March 2022 brought about by decrease in related proprietary trading gains as of end March
2022. Transaction costs also decreased by 57.2% to =
P2.0 million.
Personnel costs booked under operating expenses decreased by 33.6% to P
=2.5 million. Combined with
personnel costs booked under cost of services, total personnel costs were down to =
P8.3 million as of end
March 2022.
Other income increased by 199.0% to =
P8.7 million largely due to higher unrealized foreign exchange gain
booked as of end March 2022. The exchange rates closed at ₱51.96 and ₱6.64 per US$1 and HK$1 on
March 31, 2022, respectively, and ₱50.77 and ₱6.51 per US$1 and HK$1 on December 31, 2021,
respectively.
Total expenses comprised of cost of services and operating expenses decreased by 60.1% to
=
P20.5 million.
Due to the income position, the Company recognized income tax expense of ₱6.5M as of end March
2022.
As a result of the foregoing movements, net income decreased by 29.9% to =
P20.1 million as of end March
2022.
Other Matters
a. CTS is not aware of any known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will
have a material impact on the Company’s liquidity.
b. The Company does not anticipate any cash flow or liquidity problem in the next 12 months. The
Company is not in default or breach of any indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring
payments. The Company has paid its trade payables within the trade terms stated.
c. CTS is not aware of any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.
d. CTS is not aware of any material commitments for capital expenditures.
e. CTS is not aware of any known trends, events, or uncertainties that have had or that are
reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales or revenues
or income from continuing operations of the Company.
f.

CTS is not aware of any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the
Company’s continuing operations.

g. CTS is not aware of any seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or
results of operations of the Company.
PART II – OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable. There are no material disclosures that have not been reported under SEC Form 17-C
covered by this period.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
Registrant:

CTS GLOBAL EQUITY GROUP, INC.

By:

Lawrence C. Lee
President and Chief Executive Officer
May 18, 2022

Edmund C. Lee
Chief Finance Officer
May 18, 2022
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CTS GLOBAL EQUITY GROUP, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
Trade receivables
Other current assets
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Investment property
Net deferred tax assets
Other noncurrent assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
Securities in Vault, Transfer Offices, and Philippine
Depository and Trust Corporation
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables
Lease liabilities - current portion
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Net retirement benefit liability
Lease liabilities - net of current portion
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Capital stock
Deposits for future stock subscription
Retained earnings (deficit):
Appropriated
Unappropriated
Cumulative gain (loss) on remeasurement of retirement
benefits (net of deferred income tax)
Total Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)
Security Valuation
Money Balance
Long

6
7
8
9

P
=508,712,048
106,098,884
389,331,571
6,006,331
1,010,148,834

10
11
12
20
13

2,436,585
10,338,747
10,124,489
687,338
60,805,855
84,393,014
P
=1,094,541,848

Short

December 31, 2021 (Audited)
Security Valuation
Money Balance
Long

P
=444,299,376
2,061
406,426,557
9,920,428
860,648,422

P
=106,098,884
670,732,716

Short

P
=2,061
42,565,183

2,536,165
11,135,896
10,285,195
3,019,688
60,530,748
87,507,692
P
=948,156,114
P
=9,957,101,001

9,180,269,401

P
=10,452,610,993

14
19
15

P
=418,701,412
1,305,258
5,048,056
425,054,726

18
19

19,740,174
554,552
20,294,726
445,349,452

19,740,174
921,273
20,661,447
361,968,007

4
4

550,000,000
42,901,000

550,000,000
–

4

4,689,519
49,194,315

4,689,519
29,091,026

2,407,562
649,192,396
P
=1,094,541,848

2,407,562
586,188,107
P
=948,156,114

P
=9,957,101,001

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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P
=331,096,290
1,287,355
8,922,915
341,306,560

P
=9,957,101,001

10,410,043,749

P
=10,452,610,993

P
=10,452,610,993

CTS GLOBAL EQUITY GROUP, INC.
UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Notes
REVENUES
Trading gains on financial assets at FVPL - net
Commissions
Interests
Dividends

7
6
7

COSTS OF SERVICES
Personnel costs
Commissions
Transaction costs
Research
Stock exchange dues and fees
Central depository fees
Communications

17

GROSS PROFIT
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel costs
Condominium dues, power and water
Insurance and bonds
Taxes and licenses
Communications
Security and other manpower services
Office supplies
Professional fees
Trainings and seminars
Transportation and travel
Others

17

Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense

10
19

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Foreign exchange gains - net
Reversal of (provision for) credit losses

8

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX

For the Three Months Ended March 31
2022
2021

P
=32,462,698
5,093,121
821,640
22,226
38,399,685

P
=84,587,127
2,482,132
787,925
840,144
88,697,328

5,781,428
5,117,009
1,997,193
580,536
574,599
259,996
206,688
14,517,449

8,708,501
28,964,332
4,664,950
575,293
365,871
246,175
226,481
43,751,603

23,882,236

44,945,725

2,477,755
398,405
367,532
334,917
293,945
288,373
96,426
84,000
40,892
14,840
443,579
4,840,664
1,105,203
11,065
5,956,932

3,732,215
422,495
341,552
447,305
410,851
296,833
99,058
300,107
132,087
12,921
227,810
6,423,234
1,103,400
12,697
7,539,331

8,480,199
193,975
8,674,174

3,056,013
(155,016)
2,900,997

P
=26,599,478

(Forward)

9

P
=40,307,391

Note
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current
Deferred

For the Three Months Ended March 31
2022
2021

20
P
=4,163,839
2,332,350
6,496,189

P
=10,171,798
1,444,310
11,616,108

20,103,289

28,691,283

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

–

–

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

P
=20,103,289

P
=28,691,283

P
=0.0038

P
=0.0057

NET INCOME

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

21

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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CTS GLOBAL EQUITY GROUP, INC.
UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(With Comparative Figures for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2021)

Cumulative
Remeasurement
Gains (Losses) on
Retirement
Benefits (net of
Deferred Income
Tax)
P
=2,407,562
–
–

Capital Stock
P
=550,000,000
–
–

Deposits for
Future Stock
Subscriptions
P
=–
42,901,000
–

Appropriated
P
=4,689,519
–
–

Balances at March 31, 2022

P
=550,000,000

P
=42,901,000

P
=4,689,519

P
=49,194,315

P
=53,883,834

P
=2,407,562

P
=649,192,396

Balances at December 31, 2020
Net income
Appropriation

P
=500,000,000
–
–

P
=–
–
–

P
=–
–
4,689,519

P
=15,249,292
28,691,283
(4,689,519)

P
=15,249,292
28,691,283
–

(P
=1,793,565)
–
–

P
=513,455,727
28,691,283
–

P
=500,000,000

P
=–

P
=4,689,519

P
=39,251,056

P
=43,940,575

(P
=1,793,565)

P
=542,147,010

Note
Balances at December 31, 2021
Deposits for future stock subscription
Net income

Balances at March 31, 2021

4

4

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Retained Earnings
Unappropriated
P
=29,091,026
–
20,103,289

Total
P
=33,780,545
–
20,103,289

Total Equity
P
=586,188,107
42,901,000
20,103,289

CTS GLOBAL EQUITY GROUP, INC.
UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Three Months Ended March 31
2022
2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Unrealized foreign exchange gains - net
Depreciation and amortization
Interest income
Unrealized gains on financial assets at FVPL - net
Provision for (reversal of) credit losses
Dividend income
Interest expense
Operating income before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in:
Financial assets at FVPL
Trade receivables
Other current assets
Other noncurrent assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Net cash generated from (used for) operations
Income taxes paid
Interest received
Dividend received
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

P
=26,599,478
(8,480,199)
1,105,203
(821,640)
(616,886)
(193,975)
(22,226)
11,065
17,580,820

(3,056,013)
1,103,400
(787,925)
(1,908,488)
155,016
(840,144)
12,697
34,985,934

(104,735,552)
25,069,893
3,920,230
(275,107)

(70,408,179)
6,433,738
(367,188)
(162,342)

87,605,122
(3,928,565)
25,236,841
(4,163,839)
823,391
15,334
21,911,727

(17,271,563)
(517,612)
(47,307,212)
–
789,686
839,626
(45,677,900)
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(47,768)
(47,768)

(2,903)
(2,903)

4
19

42,901,000
(359,883)
42,541,117

–
(356,025)
(356,025)

10
6
7
8
7
19

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Deposits for future stock subscriptions
Payments on lease liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
(Forward)

12

=40,307,391
P

Years Ended December 31
2022
2021
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AT END OF YEAR
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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P
=64,405,076

(P
=46,036,828)

7,596

2,822

444,299,376

423,021,672

P
=508,712,048

=376,987,666
P

CTS GLOBAL EQUITY GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information
CTS Global Equity Group, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 26, 1986. The Company is a licensed broker/dealer
of securities with the SEC, and both a stockholder and holder of a trading right of the Philippine Stock
Exchange (PSE).
On October 16, 2019, the Board of Directors (BOD) and stockholders of the Company approved the
following amendments to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation (AOI): (a) change in primary
purpose to include incidental activities of the Company to buy, sell or otherwise deal in foreign
exchange; to hold interest in any form of association; to purchase, hire, own, or otherwise acquire
and dispose of any lands, tenants, buildings, or property, which may be necessary or convenient for
the immediate needs of the corporation and its staff; (b) change in the term of existence from
50 years from and after the date of incorporation to a perpetual existence; and (c) increase in
authorized capital stock of the corporation from ₽200.0 million divided into 2.0 million shares of
common stock at P
=100.0 par value per share to ₽800.0 million divided into 800.0 million shares of
common stock at P
=1.0 par value per share. These amendments were approved by the SEC on January
22, 2020.
On April 8, 2020, the BOD and stockholders of the Company approved the following amendments to
the Company’s AOI: (a) the name of the Company shall be “CTS Global Equity Group, Inc.”
doing business under the trade names and styles of CTS Global, CTS Global Equities, CTS Global
Securities, CTS Securities, Citisecurities (formerly Citisecurities, Inc.); and (b) the authorized capital
stock of the corporation amounting to ₽800.0 million shall be divided into 8.0 billion shares of
common stock at P
= 0.10 par value per share. These amendments were approved by the SEC on
April 14, 2021 (see Note 4).
On November 5, 2021, the BOD and stockholders of the Company authorized the Company to
undertake an initial public offering (IPO) of its shares with the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE).
Subsequently, on March 10, 2022 and March 16, 2022, the SEC and the PSE, respectively, approved
the Company’s application for IPO.
As of March 31, 2022, the Company has received deposits for future stock subscriptions amounting
to P
=42.9 million in relation to the Company’s listing in the Philippine Stock Exchange on April 13, 2022.
On April 13, 2022, the Company completed its initial public offering and was listed in the Philippine
Stock Exchange (PSE) under the stock symbol CTS. The Company listed 1,375,000,000 common shares
at an offer price of P
=1.00 per share. The proceeds from the IPO amounted to P
=1,375,000,000.
The registered office address of the Company is 27/F East Tower, Tektite Towers, Exchange Road,
Ortigas Center, Pasig City.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the
SEC. This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and
Philippine interpretations from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC).
The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The statements of financial position contain some additional information in line with the
requirements of Rule 52.1 of the Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Securities Regulation
Code.
Measurement Bases
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), the Company’s functional currency.
All values are stated in absolute amounts, unless otherwise indicated.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for an asset
and fair value of the consideration received in exchange for incurring a liability. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.
The Company uses observable market data to the extent possible when measuring the fair value of
an asset or a liability. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on inputs used in the following valuation techniques:




Level 1 − Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 − Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; or
Level 3 − Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized in different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.
The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is disclosed in
the following notes to the financial statements:




Note 5 - Fair Value Measurement
Note 7 - Financial Assets at FVPL
Note 12 - Investment Property
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Adoption of Amended PFRS
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following amended PFRS –


Amendment to PFRS 16, Leases - COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 –
In 2020, PFRS 16 was amended to provide practical expedient to lessees from applying the
requirements on lease modifications for eligible rent concessions that is a direct consequence of
COVID-19 pandemic. A lessee may elect not to assess whether eligible rent concessions from a
lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election account for any change in lease
payments resulting from the COVID-19 related rent concession the same way it would account
for a change that is not a lease modification, e.g., as a variable lease payment. This amendment
is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020, with earlier application
permitted, and covers eligible rent concessions until June 30, 2021.
Due to the continuing impact of the pandemic, another amendment to PFRS 16 was issued in
2021, which allows lessees to extend the application of the practical expedient regarding COVID19-related rent concessions to reduction in lease payments that are due on or before June 30,
2022. The 2021 amendment is mandatory for entities that elected to apply the previous
amendment.

The adoption of the amended PFRS did not materially affect the financial statements of the Company.
Additional disclosures were included in the financial statements, as applicable.
Amended PFRS Issued But Not Yet Effective
Relevant amended PFRS, which are not yet effective as at December 31, 2021 and have not been
applied in preparing the financial statements, are summarized below.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022:


Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to Conceptual Framework - The amendments will replace the
reference of PFRS 3 from the 1989 Framework to the current 2018 Conceptual Framework. The
amendments include an exception that specifies that, for some types of liabilities and contingent
liabilities, an entity applying PFRS 3 should refer to PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, or IFRIC 21, Levies, instead of the Conceptual Framework. The requirement will
ensure that the liabilities recognized in a business combination will remain the same as those
recognized applying the current requirements in PFRS 3. The amendments also clarified that an
acquirer shall not recognize contingent assets acquired in a business combination. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.



Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds Before Intended Use The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for its intended use. Instead, the proceeds and related costs from such items shall be
recognized in profit or loss. The amendments must be applied retrospectively to items of property,
plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented when an entity first applied the amendments.



Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract - The amendments clarify
that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling a contract
comprises both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of costs directly
related to contract activities. The amendments apply to contracts existing at the date when the
amendments are first applied. At the date of initial application, the cumulative effect of applying
the amendments is recognized as an opening balance adjustment to retained earnings or other
16

component of equity, as applicable. Accordingly, the comparatives are not restated. Earlier
application is permitted.


Amendment to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of
Financial Liabilities – The amendment clarifies which fees an entity shall include when it applies
the ‘10 per cent’ test in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability (i.e. whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability is substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability). These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or the lender on the other’s
behalf. The amendment applies to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applied the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted.



Amendments to PFRS 16, Leases - Lease Incentives – The amendment removes from the
Illustrative Example 13 the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor. The objective of the amendment is to avoid any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives because of how the requirements for lease incentives are illustrated.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023:


Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - The amendments
clarify the requirements for an entity to have the right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period. The amendments also specify and clarify the following:
(i) an entity’s right to defer settlement must exist at the end of the reporting period, (ii) the
classification is unaffected by management’s intentions or expectations about
whether the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement, (iii) how lending conditions
affect classification, and (iv) requirements for classifying liabilities where an entity will or may
settle by issuing its own equity instruments. The amendments must be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted.



Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure Initiative – Accounting Policies
– The amendments require an entity to disclose its material accounting policies, instead of its
significant accounting policies and provide guidance on how an entity applies the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. In assessing the materiality
of accounting policy information, entities need to consider both the size of the transactions, other
events or conditions and its nature. The amendments clarify (1) that accounting policy
information may be material because of its nature, even if the related amounts are immaterial,
(2) that accounting policy information is material if users of an entity’s financial statements would
need it to understand other material information in the financial statements, and (3) if an entity
discloses immaterial accounting policy information, such information should not obscure material
accounting policy information. In addition, PFRS Practice Statement 2, Making Materiality
Judgements, is amended by adding guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the
application of the ‘four-step materiality process’ to accounting policy information. The
amendments should be applied prospectively. Earlier application is permitted.



Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates - The amendments clarify the
distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies, and the
correction of errors. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. An entity develops an
accounting estimate if an accounting policy require an item in the financial statements to be
measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The amendments clarify that a change
in accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments is not a correction
of an error, and that the effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to
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develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from
the correction of prior period errors. A change in an accounting estimate may affect only the
profit or loss in the current period, or the profit or loss of both the current and future periods.
Earlier application is permitted.


Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax Related Assets and Liabilities from a Single
Transaction - The amendments require companies to recognize deferred tax on transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences.
Earlier application is permitted.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company.
Additional disclosures will be included in the financial statements, as applicable.
Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity or a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements
of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument.
In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as
applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.
“Day 1” Difference. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in profit or loss.
In cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Company deems the transaction price as
the best estimate of fair value and recognizes “Day 1” difference in profit or loss when the inputs
become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference.
Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, which is
the fair value of the consideration given. The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for
those designated at FVPL, includes transaction cost.
Classification. The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following
categories: (a) financial assets at FVPL, (b) financial assets at amortized cost, and (c) financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification of a financial instrument
largely depends on the Company’s business model and its contractual cash flow characteristics.
As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company does not have financial assets at FVOCI.
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost. Financial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:



The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cost is
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calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the financial
assets are derecognized and through amortization process. Financial assets at amortized cost are
included under current assets if realizability or collectability is within 12 months after the reporting
period. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company’s cash, trade receivables, interest and
dividend receivables (included under “Other current assets” account in the statements of financial
position), and investment in a retail treasury bond and refundable deposits (included under “Other
noncurrent assets” account in the statements of financial position) are classified under this category
(see Notes 6, 8, 9 and 13).
Financial Assets at FVPL. Financial assets at FVPL are either classified as held for trading or designated
at FVPL. A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it meets either of the following
conditions:

•
•

It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;
On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
It is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

This category includes debt instruments whose cash flows, based on the assessment at initial
recognition of the assets, are not “solely for payment of principal and interest”, and which are not
held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows or to both
collect contractual cash flows and sell. The Company may, at initial recognition, designate a debt
instrument meeting the criteria to be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as a financial asset at
FVPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces accounting mismatch that would arise from
measuring these assets.
This category also includes equity instruments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to
classify at FVOCI at initial recognition.

Dividends from equity instruments held at FVPL are recognized in profit or loss when the right to
receive payment is established, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment.
After initial recognition, financial assets at FVPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from the fair valuation of financial assets at FVPL are recognized in profit or loss.
As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company’s investments in various listed equity
securities are classified under this category (see Note 7).
Reclassification. The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its
business model for managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification
date).
For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of
the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss.
For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at
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amortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount.
For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost of the
financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCI.
For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets at
amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in OCI, and any difference between the new
amortized cost and maturity amount, are amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest method. If the financial asset is subsequently impaired,
any gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be recognized
in profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial asset is subsequently
impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss.
For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at FVOCI,
its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.
Meanwhile, for a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial
assets at FVPL, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the reclassification date.
Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost. For trade receivables, the Company has applied
the simplified approach and has calculated expected credit losses (ECL) based on the lifetime ECL.
The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to its customers and the economic environment.
For other financial assets measured at amortized cost, the Company applies a general approach in
calculating ECL. The Company recognizes a loss allowance based on either 12-month ECL or lifetime
ECL, depending on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on its other receivables
since initial recognition.
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 30 days past due
unless it is demonstrated that the non-payment was an administrative oversight rather than resulting
from financial difficulty of the borrower. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
Derecognition. A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized when:




The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;
The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or
The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial asset, the
financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the financial
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred financial asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
Financial Liabilities
Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value,
which is the fair value of the consideration received. In case of financial liabilities at amortized costs,
the initial measurement is net of any directly attributable transaction costs.
Classification. The Company classifies its financial liabilities at initial recognition as either financial
liabilities at FVPL or financial liabilities at amortized cost.
As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company does not have financial liabilities at FVPL.
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities at
amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company having an
obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to settle the obligation
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
its own equity instruments.
These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized or through the amortization
process.
As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company’s trade payables, other current liabilities
(excluding statutory payables), and lease liabilities are classified under this category (see Notes 14, 15
and 19).
Derecognition. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled, or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in profit or loss.
Classification of Financial Instrument between Liability and Equity. A financial instrument is classified
as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to:




Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;
Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or
Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.
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Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets
and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.
Other Current Assets
Other current assets are comprised mainly of excess tax credits, prepayments, advances to officers
and employees, prepayments and input value-added tax (VAT).
Excess Tax Credits. Excess tax credits pertain to creditable withholding tax (CWT) and prepaid income
tax. CWT pertains to tax on the Company’s income withheld and remitted to the Bureau of Internal
Revenue (BIR) by customers and deducted from income tax payable on the same year the income was
recognized. Prepaid income tax pertains to excess income tax payments of the Company over the
amount due. Unapplied or excess income tax payments are carried forward and can be utilized in
succeeding years.
Prepayments. Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before these are
utilized. Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and included in profit
or loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be realized for not more than
12 months after the financial reporting period are classified as current assets. Otherwise, these are
classified as noncurrent assets.
Advances to Officers and Employees. Advances to officers and employees are measured at face
amount. These pertain to payments made to the Company’s officers and employees in relation to the
operations of the Company. These are recognized as expense upon liquidation of said advances.
Value-Added Tax (VAT)
VAT is a tax on consumption levied on the sale, barter, exchange, or lease of goods or properties and
services, and on importation of goods in the Philippines. It is an indirect tax, which may be shifted or
passed on to the buyer, transferee or lessee of goods, properties or services.
Revenue, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except:



Where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and
Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from or payable to the taxation authority is included as part of
“Other current assets” or “Other current liabilities” accounts, respectively, in the statements of
financial position.
Deferred Input VAT
In accordance with the Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 16-2005, input VAT on purchases or imports of
the Company of capital goods (depreciable assets for income tax purposes) with an aggregate
acquisition cost (exclusive of VAT) in each of the calendar month exceeding P
=1.0 million are claimed
as credit against output VAT over 60 months or the estimated useful lives of capital goods, whichever
is shorter.
Deferred input VAT represents the unamortized amount of input VAT on capital goods and input VAT
on the unpaid portion of availed services. Deferred input VAT on capital goods is classified as current
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assets if it is expected to be claimed against output VAT within twelve (12) months after the reporting
date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets. Where the aggregate acquisition cost
(exclusive of VAT) of the existing or finished depreciable capital goods purchased or imported during
any calendar month does not exceed P
= 1.0 million, the total input VAT will be allowable as credit
against output VAT in the month of acquisition.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets pertain to software and licenses and exchange trading right.
Software and Licenses. Software and licenses are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent
to initial recognition, software and licenses are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Software and licenses are amortized over its estimated economic life
of 10 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the software and
licenses may be impaired.
The amortization period and method are reviewed at least at each reporting date. Changes in the
expected economic life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.
Exchange Trading Right. Exchange trading right is initially measured at cost. It is an intangible asset
with indefinite useful life and is tested for impairment annually. Exchange trading right is not
amortized but is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The exchange trading
right is deemed to have indefinite useful lives as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the Company. The assumption that the
exchange trading right remains to be an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether this continues to be supportable as such. If not, the carrying amount of the asset
is amortized over its remaining useful life on a straight-line basis unless a more appropriate
amortization method is warranted. Any impairment losses determined are recognized in profit or loss.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and recognized in profit or
loss in the period of derecognition.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses.
The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.
Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs,
maintenance, and overhaul costs, are normally recognized in profit or loss in the year the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance,
the expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of property and equipment.
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Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives of the property and equipment:

Office condominium units and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures, and office equipment

Number of Years
10 to 20
10 or lease term,
whichever is shorter
2 to 5

The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
property and equipment.
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the account until they are no longer in use and no further
change for depreciation is made in respect of those assets.
When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation
and amortization and any accumulated impairment losses are removed from the accounts. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.
Investment Property
Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment in value. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment
property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of
day-to-day servicing of an investment property.
Depreciation of investment property is calculated on a straight-line basis over a 20-year estimated
useful life. The estimated useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure
that these are consistent with expected pattern of economic benefits of investment property.
Investment property is derecognized when either they have been disposed of or the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are recognized in
profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.
Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced
by the end of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party. Transfers
are made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by the
commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sell.
For transfers from investment property to owner-occupied properties or inventories, the cost for
subsequent accounting is its carrying amount at the date of change in use. If the property occupied
by the Company as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Company
accounts for such in accordance with the policy under property and equipment up to the date of
change in use.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The carrying amounts of nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, except for the exchange
trading right where test of impairment is done annually. If any such indication exists and when the
carrying amounts exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or cash-generating units
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(CGU) are written down to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the asset is the
greater of the fair value less cost to sell or value in use. The fair value less cost to sell is the amount
obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s-length transaction. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or
loss.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. In such instance, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to its recoverable amount. However, that increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such reversal,
the depreciation and amortization charges are adjusted in future years to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Equity
Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding.
Deposit for Future Stock Subscriptions. Deposit for future stock subscription represents funds
received from existing or potential stockholders to be applied as payment for future issuance of
capital stock. Proceeds are recognized as equity if and only if, all of the following set forth by the SEC
are present as of the end of the reporting period:




There is a lack or insufficiency of authorized unissued shares of stock to cover the deposit;
The Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders have approved an increase in capital stock to
cover the shares corresponding to the amount of the deposit; and
An application for the approval of the increase in capital stock has been presented for filling or
filed with the SEC.

If any or all of the foregoing elements are not present, the transaction should be recognized as a
liability.
Retained Earnings (Deficit). Retained earnings (deficit) represent the cumulative balance of net
income or loss, net of any dividend declarations. At each reporting date, net income or loss of the
Company is transferred to retained earnings. Appropriated retained earnings pertain to the restricted
portion which is intended for the reserve fund in compliance with the SRC Rule 49.1 (B). When the
retained earnings amount has a debit balance, it is called ‘deficit’. A deficit is a deduction from equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new common stock are recognized as a
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). OCI pertains to cumulative remeasurement gains or losses on net
retirement benefit liability, net of related deferred tax.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the contract
has been satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenue is recognized over time if one of
the following criteria is met: (a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as
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the Company perform its obligations; (b) the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or (c) the Company’s performance
does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the Company has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date. Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in
time.
The Company also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal or as
an agent. The Company has assessed that it acts as agent in its brokerage transactions.
The Company acts as a principal in its income from other sources.
Commissions. These pertain to the revenue from brokerage transactions, which are recorded on trade
date basis as trade transaction occurs.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met for other revenues:
Trading Gains or Losses on Financial Assets at FVPL. Trading gains or losses on financial assets at FVPL
include all gains and losses from changes in fair value and disposal of financial assets at FVPL.
Unrealized gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss upon remeasurement of the financial assets
at FVPL at each reporting date. Gains or losses from sale of financial assets at FVPL are recognized in
profit or loss upon confirmation of trade deals.
Interests. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the effective
yield of the asset.
Dividends. Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is
established, which is generally when the board of directors approves the dividend declaration.
Other Income. Income from other sources is recognized when earned during the period.
Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefit related
to a decrease in an asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
Costs of Services. Costs of services such as commissions, direct personnel costs, transaction costs,
research costs, stock exchange dues and fees, central depository fees and communication costs are
recognized when the related revenue is recognized or when the service is rendered.
Operating Expenses. Operating expenses incurred by the Company such as indirect personnel costs,
utility costs, and other operating expenses are administrative overhead costs and are recognized in
profit or loss when incurred.
Employee Benefits
Short-term Benefits. The Company recognizes short-term employee benefits based on contractual
arrangements with employees. Unpaid portion of the short-term employee benefits are measured
on an undiscounted basis and is included as part of “Other current liabilities” account in the
statements of financial position.
Retirement Benefits. Retirement benefit costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit
credit method. This method reflects services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and
incorporates assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries. The calculation of defined
benefit liability is performed annually by a qualified actuary. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in the future
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contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given
to any applicable minimum funding requirements.
The Company recognizes service costs, comprising of current service costs and past service costs in
profit or loss. Net interest costs on retirement benefit liability is presented as part of
“Interest expense” account in the statements of comprehensive income.
The Company determines the net interest expense by applying the discount rate to the net defined
liability at the beginning of the year, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments.
Remeasurements of the retirement benefit liability, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, return
on plan assets (excluding interest), and effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognized immediately in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or
loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.
The net retirement benefit liability recognized by the Company is the aggregate of the present value
of the defined benefit liability reduced by the fair value of plan assets, out of which the obligations
are to be settled directly. The present value of the defined benefit liability is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free interest rates of government bonds
that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related retirement benefit liability.
Actuarial valuations are made so that the amounts recognized in the financial statements do not differ
materially from the amounts that would be determined at the reporting date.
Leases
The Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets for a period of time, the Company assesses
whether, throughout the period of use, it has both of the following:
i.

The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset; and

ii. The right to direct the use of the identified asset.
If the Company has the right to control the use of an identified asset for only a portion of the term of
the contract, the contract contains a lease for that portion of the term.
The Company also assesses whether a contract contains a lease for each potential separate lease
component. The Company recognizes a ROU asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to
all lease agreements in which it is the lessee.
Company as a Lessee. At the commencement date, the Company recognizes a ROU asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for leases with lease terms of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and
leases for which the underlying asset is of low value in which case the lease payments associated with
those leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis.
ROU Assets. At commencement date of the lease contract, the Company measures a ROU asset
(presented as part of property and equipment account) at cost. The initial measurement of ROU
assets includes the following:


The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
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Lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
Initial direct costs; and
An estimation of costs to be incurred by the Company in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, when applicable.

After the commencement date, the ROU assets are carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the related lease
liabilities. The ROU assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms or the useful lives of
the underlying assets.
Lease Liabilities. At commencement date, the Company measures a lease liability at the present value
of future lease payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. Otherwise, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of a lease liability comprise the following:





Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;
Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; and
The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonable
certain not to terminate early.

A lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost. Interest expense on the lease liability and
any variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liability are recognized in profit
or loss unless these are capitalized as costs of another asset. Variable lease payments not included in
the measurement of the lease liability are recognized in profit or loss when the event or condition
that triggers those payments occurs.
If there is a change in the lease term or if there is a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset, the lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate considering the
revised lease payments on the basis of the revised lease term or reflecting the change in amounts
payable under the purchase option. The lease liability is also remeasured using the revised lease
payments if there is a change in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee
or a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine
those payments.
Income Taxes
Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences that are expected to
increase future taxable income. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences and carryforward benefits of unused tax credits from the excess of minimum corporate
income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss
carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
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the deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized. Deferred tax, however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items directly recognized to equity or in OCI.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.
Related Party Transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.
Related parties may be individual or corporate entities. Transactions between related parties are
accounted for at arm’s-length prices or on terms similar to those offered to non-related parties in an
economically comparable market. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention
is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely on legal form.
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting
entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.
Related party transactions are considered material and/or significant if i) these transactions amount
to 10% or higher of the Company’s total assets or, ii) there are several transactions or a series of
transactions over a 12-month period with the same related party amounting to 10% or higher of the
Company’s total assets.
Foreign Currency-Denominated Transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Outstanding monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated using the closing exchange rate at reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction. The gain or loss arising on translation of
non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognized in profit or loss.
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Segment Reporting
The Company reports separate information about each operating segment identified. An operating
segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities: from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Company’s other components; from whose operating results are regularly reviewed to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment; and for which discrete information is
available.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss,
net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes
to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Earnings per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income (less preferred dividends net of tax, if any) for the
year attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common stocks
outstanding during the year, with retroactive adjustment for any stock dividends or stock splits
declared during the year.
Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common stocks
outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive effect for any stock dividends, stock splits or
reverse stock splits during the year, and adjusted for the effect of dilutive options.
Events after the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position as
at reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

3. Summary of Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates, and Assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to exercise judgments and make
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and related notes. The judgments and accounting estimates, and assumptions used in the financial
statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the
reporting date. While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may
materially affect the estimated amounts. Actual results could differ from such estimates.
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.
The following are the significant judgments, accounting estimates, and assumptions by the Company:
Judgments
Determination the of Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of the underlying
circumstances relevant to the Company, the functional currency of the Company has been
determined to be Philippine Peso, which is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates. It is the currency that mainly influences economic value of the income
and costs from the Company’s operations.
Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets. Classification and measurement of financial
assets depends on the results of the “solely for payments of principal and interests” and the business
model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated, the risks that affect the performance of the assets, and how these risks are managed.
The Company monitors financial assets measured at FVPL or amortized cost that are derecognized
prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the
Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate. Otherwise, change in the business model should result
to a change in the classification of those financial assets.
As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company’s investments in various listed equity
securities and investment in a retail treasury bond are classified as financial assets at FVPL and
amortized cost, respectively (see Notes 7 and 13).
Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments. The fair values of securities that are actively traded
in organized financial markets are determined by reference to unadjusted quoted market prices at
the close of business on the reporting date.
When the fair values of financial assets recorded in the statements of financial position cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active market, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to this model are taken from
observable market when possible, but when this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.
In accordance with the amendments to PFRS 7, disclosures about the level in the fair value hierarchy
are required in which the fair value measurements are categorized for assets and liabilities measured
in the statements of financial position.
Assumptions and methods of determining the fair values of financial instruments are presented in
Note 5 to the financial statements.
Determination of the Operating Segments. The Company is organized into operating segments based
on business activities as allowed under PFRS 8, Operating Segments due to their similar characteristics.
This is evidenced by a consistent range of gross margin across all business activities as well as
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uniformity in revenue trend for all business activities. Moreover, all business activities have the
following business characteristics:




Similar nature of products/services offered and methods to distribute products and provide
services;
Similar class of target customers; and
Primary place of operations is in the Philippines.

As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company determined that it has two operating
segments which pertain to local and global trading (see Note 22).
Evaluation of the Adequacy of Tax Liabilities. The Company takes into account the impact of uncertain
tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Company believes that its
accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors,
including interpretation of tax laws and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events. New information may
become available that causes the Company to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing
tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a
determination is made.
Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
Assessment of the ECL on Trade Receivables. The Company, applying the simplified approach in the
computation of ECL, initially uses a provision matrix based on historical default rates for trade
receivables. The provision matrix specifies provision rates depending on the number of days that a
trade receivable is past due. The Company also uses appropriate groupings if its historical credit loss
experience show significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments. The Company
then adjusts the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information on the basis of
current observable data affecting each customer segment to reflect the effects of current and
forecasted economic conditions. The Company regularly reviews the methodology and assumptions
used for estimating ECL to reduce any differences between estimates and actual credit loss experience.
The determination of the relationship between historical default rates and forecasted economic
conditions is a significant accounting estimate. Accordingly, the provision for credit losses on trade
receivables is sensitive to changes in assumptions about forecasted economic conditions.
Provision for (reversal of) credit losses on trade receivables are as follows:

Note
Provision for (reversal of) credit
losses on trade receivables

8

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)

March 31, 2021
(Unaudited)

(P
=193,975)

P
=155,016

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and related allowance for credit losses are as follows:

Trade receivables
Allowance for credit losses

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
P
=389,639,748
=406,928,709
P
308,177
502,152

Note
8
8

Assessment of the ECL on Other Financial Assets at Amortized Cost. The Company determines the
allowance for ECL using general approach. The Company calculates ECL for its other financial assets
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at amortized cost at initial recognition by considering the occurrences and probabilities of possible
defaults only for the next 12 months, rather than the life of the asset. It continues to apply this
method until a significant increase in credit risk has occurred, at which point the loss allowance is
measured based on lifetime ECL.
When determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and that is
relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not limited to,
the following factors:




Actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade;
Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions;
Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower.

The Company also considers financial assets that are more than 30 days past due to be the latest point
at which lifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonstrate that this does not represent a
significant risk in credit risk such as when non-payment was an administrative oversight rather than
resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower.
The Company has assessed that the ECL on other financial assets at amortized cost is not material
because the transactions with respect to these financial assets were entered into by the Company
only with reputable banks and companies with good credit standing and relatively low risk of
defaults. Accordingly, no provision for credit losses on other financial assets at amortized cost was
recognized in March 2022 and 2021.
The carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortized cost are as follows:

Note
6
9
9
13
13

Cash
Interest receivables*
Dividend receivables*
Investment in a retail treasury bond**
Refundable deposits**

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
P
=508,712,048
235,955
7,950
50,000,000
10,496,668

December 31,
2021 (Audited)
=444,299,376
P
237,772
–
50,000,000
10,277,093

*Included under “Other current assets” account in the statements of financial position.
**Included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the statements of financial position.

Estimation of the Useful Lives of Intangible Assets, Property and Equipment (including Right-of-Use
Assets), and Investment Property. The exchange trading right is deemed to have indefinite useful life
as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash
inflows for the Company. The useful lives of software and licenses, property and equipment, and
investment property are estimated based on the period over which the assets are expected to be
available for use and are reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation
and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
software and licenses, property and equipment and investment property.
The useful lives are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and
tear, and technical and commercial obsolescence. Any reduction in the estimated useful lives of these
assets would increase the Company’s recorded operating expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.
There is no change in the estimated useful lives of software and licenses, property and equipment
and investment property in March 2022 and 2021.
Assessment of the Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. The Company assesses impairment on
intangible assets, property and equipment (including right-of-use assets), investment property,
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and other nonfinancial assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets or Company of assets may not be recoverable. The relevant factors that the
Company considers in deciding whether to perform an asset impairment review include, among
others, the following:




Significant underperformance of a business in relation to expectations;
Significant negative industry or economic trends; and
Significant changes or planned changes in the use of the assets.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognized. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the
CGU to which the asset belongs.
The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of the fair value less cost of disposal or value in
use. The fair value less cost to sell is the net amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an
arm’s-length transaction. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
No impairment loss on intangible assets, property and equipment, investment property and other
nonfinancial assets was recognized in March 2022 and 2021.
The carrying amounts of nonfinancial assets are as follows:

Note
11
12
10
9
13

Property and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets
Other current assets*
Other noncurrent assets**

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
P
=10,338,747
10,124,489
2,436,585
5,762,426
309,187

December 31,
2021 (Audited)
=11,135,896
P
10,285,195
2,536,165
9,682,656
253,655

*Excluding interest and dividends receivable aggregating P
=0.2 million as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively.
**Excluding investment in a retail treasury bond and refundable deposits aggregating =P 60.5 million and P
= 60.3 million as at
March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively.

Determination of the Retirement Benefits. The determination of the obligation and cost of retirement
benefit is dependent on the assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such amounts. The
assumptions are described in Note 18 to the financial statements and include, among others, discount
rates and salary increase rates. Actual results that differ from the Company’s assumptions are
recognized in OCI and, therefore, generally affect the recorded obligation in such future periods.
Net retirement benefit liability amounted to P
=19.7 million as at March 31, 2022 and December 31,
2021, respectively (see Note 18).
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets. The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets
at each reporting date and adjusts the balance to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized within the
period allowed by the tax regulations.
The Company recognized deferred tax assets amounting to P
=5.5 million and P
=5.6 million as at March
31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively, because management believes that the Company will
be able to generate sufficient taxable income against which these deferred tax assets can be utilized
(see Note 20).
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4. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash, financial assets at FVPL, trade receivables,
interest and dividend receivables (included under “Other current assets” account in the statements
of financial position), investment in a retail treasury bond and refundable deposits (included under
“Other noncurrent assets” account in the statements of financial position), trade payables, other
current liabilities (excluding statutory liabilities), and lease liabilities.
The main risks arising from the Company’s use of financial instruments include credit risk,
liquidity risk, and market risk. The Company’s overall risk management process focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on
the Company’s financial performance. The BOD regularly reviews and approves the appropriate
policies for managing these financial risks, as summarized below.
Credit Risk
The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises when the counterparty fails to fulfill its financial
commitments to the Company under the prevailing contractual terms. Financial instruments that
potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist primarily of trade receivables and other financial
assets at amortized cost.
The carrying amounts of the financial assets at amortized cost represent its maximum credit exposure,
without taking into account any collateral, other credit enhancements or credit risk mitigating
features. The table below presents the credit quality of the assets by indicating whether the assets
are subjected to 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL. Assets that are credit-impaired, if any, are separately
presented.

Financial assets at amortized cost:
Cash
Trade receivables
Interest receivables*
Dividend receivables
Investment in a retail treasury bond**
Refundable deposits**

12-month ECL

March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)
Lifetime ECL
− Not CreditLifetime ECL
Impaired
− Credit-Impaired

P
=508,712,048
–
235,955
7,950
50,000,000
–
P
=558,955,953

P
=–
389,639,748
–
–
–
10,496,668
P
=400,136,416

Total

P
=–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=–

P
=508,712,048
389,639,748
235,955
7,950
50,000,000
10,496,668
P
=959,092,369

December 31, 2021 (Audited)
Lifetime ECL
Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL − Not Credit-Impaired
− Credit-Impaired

Total

*Included under “Other current assets” account in the statements of financial position.
**Included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the statements of financial position.

Financial assets at amortized cost:
Cash
Trade receivables
Interest receivables*
Investment in a retail treasury bond**
Refundable deposits**

=444,287,376
P
–
237,772
50,000,000
–
=494,525,148
P

=–
P
406,928,709
–
–
10,277,093
=417,205,802
P

=P–
–
–
–
–
=–
P

=P444,287,376
406,928,709
237,772
50,000,000
10,277,093
=911,730,950
P

*Included under “Other current assets” account in the statements of financial position.
**Included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the statements of financial position.
.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by maintaining its deposit with highly reputable and
pre-approved financial institutions. In addition, customers are initially assessed for creditworthiness
based on their profile (i.e., financial capacity, reputation, collateral). The Company mitigates its credit
risk by transacting with recognized and creditworthy counterparties. The Company also monitors
receivable balances regularly. In accordance with the Risk-Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA)
requirements, limits are imposed to avoid large exposure to a single client or counterparty and single
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equity relative to a particular issuer company or group of companies. Furthermore, credit exposures
are minimized by collateral held in the form of securities purchased.
The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty or Company
of counterparties having similar characteristics.
Trade Receivables
The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments analyzed by customer type, credit
terms, and number of days outstanding. The Company adjusts historical default rates to forwardlooking default rate by determining the closely related economic factor affecting each customer
segment (i.e. percentage change in GDP). At each reporting date, the observed historical default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.
The aging analysis of the Company’s receivables from customers is as follows:

Days from Transaction Date
of Counterparty
1 - 3 days
4 - 14 days
15 - 31 days
Over 31 days

March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)
Collateral
Amount
(net of haircut)
P
=4,978,797
P
=432,177,438
586,722
1,401,742
66,244
2,441,243
317,606
347,022
P
=5,949,369
P
=436,367,445

Counterparty
Exposure
P
=–
11,734
–
296,442
P
=308,176

Days from Transaction Date
of Counterparty
1 - 3 days
4 - 14 days
15 - 31 days
Over 31 days

December 31, 2021 (Audited)
Collateral
Amount
(net of haircut)
P
=26,854
P
=118,243
42,644
32,460
2,709
755,205
980,129
27,013,803
P
=1,052,336
P
=27,919,711

Counterparty
Exposure
P
=–
852
–
501,300
P
=502,152

The Securities Regulation Code (SRC) requires broker/dealers to maintain a stock record for each cash
and margin account of every customer regardless of the frequency of transactions. The stock record
is a record of accountability reflecting all securities for which the Company has custodial responsibility
or proprietary ownership. Transactions in the customer accounts cover both money balances and
security positions, with the security transaction and related money generally recorded on the
settlement date.
On a regular basis, collateral valuations of customers’ accounts are analyzed to ensure that these are
sufficient to cover the outstanding balances due to the Company.
As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, receivables from customers amounting to P
=5.9 million
and P
= 1.1 million respectively, are secured by collateral comprising of equity securities of listed
companies with a total market value of P
=670.7 million and P
=42.6 million, respectively (see Note 8).
Receivables from other brokers pertain to funds held by other brokers for the Company’s global
trading activities. The Company has assessed that ECL on these receivables are insignificant because
the counterparties are companies with good credit standing and low risk of defaults. Further, the
funds held by other brokers as at the end of the reporting period were subsequently reinvested to
various equity and debt securities in other foreign markets. On the other hand, receivables from
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clearing house are due and collectible after three (3) business days from transaction date. Accordingly,
no provision for credit losses on receivables from other brokers and clearing house was recognized in
March 31, 2022 and 2021.
Other Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
It is the Company’s policy to measure ECL on other financial assets at amortized cost on a 12-month
basis. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.
When determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and that is
relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not limited to,
the following factors:




Actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade;
Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions; and
Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower.

The Company also considers financial assets that are more than 30 days past due to be the latest point
at which lifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonstrate that this does not represent
significant credit risk such as when non-payment arising from administrative oversight rather than
resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower.
The Company has assessed that the ECL on other financial assets at amortized cost is insignificant
because the transactions with respect to these financial assets are with reputable banks and
companies with good credit standing and low risk of defaults. Accordingly, no provision for credit
losses on other financial assets at amortized cost was recognized in March 31. 2022 and 2021.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Company encounters difficulties in raising adequate funds to meet its
financial commitments at a reasonable cost. The Company’s objectives in effectively managing its
liquidity are: (a) to ensure that adequate funding is available at all times; (b) to meet the commitments
as they arise without incurring unnecessary costs; and (c) to be able to access funding when needed
at the least possible cost.
The Company monitors its cash flows, particularly the receivables from customers’ collections and the
funding requirements of operations, to ensure an adequate balance of inflows and outflows.
Further, special reserve requirements for the customers of the Company are maintained in the bank
(see Note 6).
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the Company based on
remaining undiscounted cash flows:

Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other current liabilities*

March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)
1 to 3 Months
3 to 12 Months
P
=–
P
=–
–
959,356
1,865,206
–
P
=1,865,206
P
=959,356

On Demand
P
=418,701,412
–
–
P
=418,701,412

Excluding statutory liabilities amounting to P
=3.2 million as at March 31, 2022.
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1 to 5 Years
P
=–
929,500
–
P
=929,500

Total
P
=418,701,412
1,888,856
1,865,206
P
=422,455,474

Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other current liabilities*

December 31, 2021 (Audited)
1 to 3 Months
3 to 12 Months
=–
P
=–
P
359,884
959,356
6,492,533
–
=6,852,417
P
=959,356
P

On Demand
=331,096,290
P
–
–
=331,096,290
P

1 to 5 Years
=–
P
929,500
–
=929,500
P

Total
=331,096,290
P
2,248,740
6,492,533
=339,837,563
P

Excluding statutory liabilities amounting to P
=2.4 million as at December 31, 2021.

The Company is exposed to market risks, primarily those related to foreign currency risk and equity
price risk. Management actively monitors these exposures, as follows:
Foreign Currency Risk. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company periodically reviews the trend of the foreign exchange rates to address its exposure in
foreign currency risk. The Company’s policy is to maintain foreign currency exposure within
acceptable limits and within the existing regulatory guidelines. The Company believes that its profile
of foreign currency exposure on its assets is within conservative limits for a financial institution
engaged in the type of business in which the Company is engaged.
The following table shows the Company’s US dollar-denominated monetary financial assets:
US Dollar
Financial assets:
Cash in banks
Receivables from other brokers

$6,347
6,134,465
$6,140,812

US Dollar
Financial assets:
Cash in banks
Receivables from other brokers

$6,360
6,330,235
$6,336,595

March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)
Philippine Peso
HK Dollar
P
=329,790
318,746,842
P
=319,076,632

Philippine Peso

$–
6,006,378
$6,006,378

P
=–
39,874,544
P
=39,874,544

December 31, 2021 (Audited)
Philippine Peso
HK Dollar

Philippine Peso

=322,944
P
321,411,360
=321,734,304
P

$–
6,694,793
$6,694,793

=–
P
43,583,778
=43,583,778
P

For purposes of restating the outstanding balances of the Company’s foreign currency-denominated
monetary financial assets as at March 31, 2022, the exchange rates applied were P
=51.96 and P
=6.64
per US$1 and HK$1, respectively. As at December 31, 2021, the exchange rates applied were P
=50.77
and P
=6.51 per US$1 and HK$1, respectively.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar and
HK dollar exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s income before tax
in March 31, 2022 and 2021. There is no other impact on the Company’s equity other than those
already affecting profit or loss.

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Increase/Decrease
in Exchange Rate
US Dollar
HK Dollar
+0.53
+0.05
-0.53
-0.05
+0.26
-0.26
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+0.03
-0.03

Effect on Income
before Tax
US Dollar
HK Dollar
P
=3,269,735
P
=298,907
(3,269,735)
(298,907)
=P1,411,597
(1,411,597)

=P223,688
(223,688)

Equity Price Risk. Equity price risk arise when the fair values of quoted equity securities decrease as
the result of the adverse changes in the quoted equity prices as affected by both rational and irrational
market forces. The Company’s equity risk exposure is mainly from its financial assets at FVPL.
The Company’s policy is to maintain the risk to an acceptable level. Movement in share price is
monitored regularly to determine the impact on its financial position.
Capital Management
The Company’s objective in managing capital is to ensure that a stable capital base is maintained in
accordance with industry regulations, while maintaining investor, creditor, and market confidence to
sustain the future development of the business.
The Company’s BOD has the overall responsibility for monitoring capital proportion to risks.
The Associated Person designated by the Company monitors compliance with minimum net capital
requirements imposed by the PSE and the SEC.
The Company, being a broker/dealer in securities, is regulated by PSE and SEC and subject to the
following capital requirements in accordance with the SRC.
Required Capitalization for Broker/Dealers
In compliance with SRC Rule 28 of the 2015 Implementing Rules and Regulations of Securities
Regulation Code, trading participants, who will be participating in a registered clearing agency,
are required to have a minimum unimpaired capital of P
=100.0 million effective November 9, 2015.
Unimpaired paid-up capital pertains to the Company’s paid-up capital less any deficit.
The unimpaired paid-up capital of the Company amounted to P
=550.0 million as at March 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021, respectively.
Details of the Company’s common shares at =P0.10 par value per share are as follows:
March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)
Number of
Shares
Amount

December 31, 2021 (Audited)
Number of
Shares
Amount

Authorized Capital Stock
Balance at beginning of year
Effect of stock split
Addition
Balance

8,000,000,000
–
–
8,000,000,000

P
=800,000,000
–
–
P
=800,000,000

800,000,000
7,200,000,000
–
8,000,000,000

P
=800,000,000
–
–
P
=800,000,000

Issued and Outstanding
Balance at beginning of year
Effect of stock split
Addition
Balance

5,500,000,000
–
–
5,500,000,000

P
=550,000,000
–
–
P
=550,000,000

500,000,000
4,500,000,000
500,000,000
5,500,000,000

P
=500,000,000
–
50,000,000
P
=550,000,000

On October 16, 2019, the BOD and stockholders of the Company approved the increase
authorized capital stock from P
= 200.0 million divided into 2.0 million common shares
P
= 100 par value per share to P
= 800.0 million divided into 800.0 million common shares
P
= 1 par value per share. The amount of cash received from stockholders amounted
P
=300.0 million.

in
at
at
to

On November 6, 2019, the Company submitted the application for the increase in authorized capital
stock to the SEC.
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On January 22, 2020, the SEC approved the Company’s increase in authorized capital stock.
Accordingly, deposit for future stock subscription of =P300.0 million was applied against the issuance
of additional 300.0 million shares at =P1.0 par value per share from the Company’s unissued capital
stock. In 2020, the directly attributable costs on the increase in authorized capital stock and issuance
of additional shares amounted to ₽4.2 million.
On April 8, 2020, the BOD and stockholders of the Company approved the change in the par value of
the authorized capital stock from P
=1 per share to P
=0.10 per share.
On April 14, 2021, the SEC approved the Company's change in par value of its authorized capital stock.
On July 15, 2021, the Company issued additional 500.0 million shares at P
=0.10 par value per share
from the Company’s unissued capital stock. Stock issuance costs pertaining to documentary stamp
tax paid by the Company amounted to P
=0.5 million.
On December 13, 2021, the Company incurred additional stock issuance costs amounting to
P
=1.1 million in relation to the application for registration of securities with SEC for its initial public
offering.
As of March 31, 2022, the Company has received deposits for future stock subscriptions amounting
to P
=42.9 million in relation to the Company’s listing in the Philippine Stock Exchange on April 13, 2022.
Reserve Fund
The Company shall annually appropriate a certain minimum percentage of its previous year’s audited
net income and transfer the same to “Appropriated Retained Earnings” in compliance with SRC Rule
49.1 (B). The Company appropriated a reserve fund amounting to P
=4.7 million in 2021. The Company
has no appropriation for reserve fund in 2020 because of the audited net loss position in 2019. The
Company reversed the appropriated retained earnings amounting to P
=3.8 million in 2019 because it
incurred a deficit as at December 31, 2019.
Net Liquid Capital (NLC)
The Company is required, at all times, to have and maintain an NLC of at least P
=5.0 million or 5% of its
Aggregate Indebtedness (AI), whichever is higher.
In computing for NLC, all non-allowable assets/equities and collateralized liabilities will be deducted,
and allowable liabilities and equities are added to equity per books. The equity eligible for NLC
pertains to the sum of the following:
a. Equity per books;
b. Liabilities subordinated to the claims of creditors in conformity with SRC Rule 49.1 and in
accordance with a prescribed schedule; and
c. Deposits for future stock subscription for which an application for increase in capital stock or
request for exemption for registration has been presented for filing or has been filed with the SEC.
The equity eligible for NLC shall exclude deferred income tax, revaluation reserves, and minority
interest and any outside investment in affiliates and associates.
In computing for NLC, the equity eligible for NLC is adjusted by the following:
a. Adding unrealized gains (or deducting unrealized losses) in the accounts of the Company;
b. Deducting fixed assets and assets which cannot be readily converted into cash (less any AI in
accordance with SRC Rule 49.1);
c. Deducting general guarantees and indemnities for loans and indebtedness other than those
incurred by the Company, unless otherwise permitted by the SEC; and
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d. Deducting long and short securities differences.
AI shall mean the total money liabilities of a broker/dealer arising in connection with any transaction
whatsoever and includes, among others, money borrowed, money payable against securities loaned
and securities failed to receive, market value of securities borrowed to the extent to which no
equivalent value is paid or credited (other than the market value of margin securities borrowed from
customers and margin securities borrowed from non-customers), customers’ and non-customers’ free
credit balances, and credit balances in customers’ and non-customers’ accounts having short positions
in securities, but excluding the items set out in SRC Rule 49.1 (1) (D).
The Company’s NLC met the minimum prescribed amounts as shown below:
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
NLC:
Equity eligible for NLC
Less ineligible assets
Required NLC:
Higher of:
5% of AI
Minimum amount
Net risk-based capital excess

P
=645,969,384
40,058,405
605,910,979

=580,760,857
P
44,170,660
536,590,197

13,866,760
5,000,000
13,866,760
P
=592,044,219

10,875,773
5,000,000
10,875,773
P
=525,714,424

Ratio of AI to NLC
The Company shall not permit its AI to all other persons to exceed 2,000% of its NLC.
The Company’s ratio of AI to NLC is 46% and 41% as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
respectively.
RBCA Requirement/Ratio
The RBCA requirement/ratio refers to the minimum level of capital to be maintained by firms which
are licensed or securing a broker/dealer license, taking into consideration the firm size, complexity,
and business risk. Such risks that are considered in determining the capital requirement include,
among others, operational, position, counterparty, large exposure, underwriting, and margin
financing risks. The RBCA ratio should be greater than or equal to 1:1.
The RBCA ratio is the ratio linking the NLC of the Company to its Total Risk Capital Requirement (TRCR),
calculated as the Company’s NLC divided by its TRCR. The TRCR is the sum of:
a. Operational Risk Requirement (ORR);
b. Credit Risk Requirement which include requirements for Counterparty Risk, Settlement Risk,
Large Exposure Risk, and Margin Lending/Financing Risk; and
c. Position or Market Risk Requirement.
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March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
P
=605,910,979
=536,590,197
P

NLC
TRCR:
Operational risk
Credit risk
Position risk
Total risk capital requirement
RBCA ratio

20,232,681
12,981
32,250,979
52,496,641

20,232,681
–
1,976,552
22,209,233

1,154%

2,416%

As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company is compliant with the required RBCA ratio.
Ratio of Core Equity to ORR
The Company’s core equity shall be at all times greater than its ORR.
Core equity refers to the sum of paid-up common stock, common stock dividends distributable,
additional paid-in capital, surplus reserves excluding revaluation reserves or appraisal capital,
and opening retained earnings adjusted for all current year movements. Core equity shall exclude
treasury shares and unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments (such as unrealized
gain in value of financial assets at FVOCI).
The Company’s ratio of core equity to ORR is as follows:
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
P
=550,000,000
=550,000,000
P
33,780,545
15,249,292
42,901,000
–
626,681,545
565,249,292
20,232,681
20,232,681
3,097%
2,794%

Capital stock
Beginning retained earnings (deficit)
Deposits for future stock subscriptions
Core equity
ORR
Ratio of Core Equity to ORR

5. Fair Value Measurement
The following table presents the carrying amount and fair value of the Company’s assets measured at
fair value and for which fair value is disclosed, and the corresponding fair value hierarchy:

Note
Asset measured at fair value Financial assets at FVPL
Assets for which fair value is disclosed:
Investment property
Investment in a retail treasury bond

Carrying
Amount

March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)
Fair Value
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active
Observable
Markets
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

7

P
=106,098,884

P
=106,098,884

P
=–

P
=–

12
13

10,124,489
50,000,000
P
=166,223,373

–
–
P
=106,098,884

–
49,027,064
P
=49,027,064

35,830,800
–
P
=35,830,800
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December 31, 2021 (Audited)
Fair Value
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active
Observable
Markets
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Note

Carrying
Amount

7

P
=2,061

P
=2,061

P
=–

P
=–

12
13

10,285,195
50,000,000
P
=60,287,256

–
–
P
=2,061

–
49,027,064
P
=49,027,064

35,830,800
–
P
=35,830,800

Asset measured at fair value Financial assets at FVPL
Assets for which fair value is disclosed:
Investment property
Investment in a retail treasury bond

The Company used the following techniques to determine fair value measurements:
Financial Assets at FVPL. The Company’s financial assets at FVPL as at March 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021 are carried at fair values based on sources classified under the Level 1 category.
The fair values of financial assets at FVPL are based on prevailing quoted market prices, which are
usually the closing prices from active markets as at reporting date.
Investment Property. Valuations were derived on the basis of recent sales of similar properties in the
same areas as the investment property and taking into account the economic conditions prevailing at
the time the valuations were made and comparability of similar properties sold with the property
being valued. The fair valuation is classified under Level 3 category.
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Company’s investment
property are the estimated net price per square meter and various factors such as size, location, and
utility, among others. Significant increases (decreases) in the estimated net price per square meter
in isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement. Further, choosing
comparables with different inputs would result in a significantly different fair value measurement.
The Company has determined that the current use of its investment property as at
March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 is its highest and best use.
Investment in a Retail Treasury Bond. The fair value of investment in a retail treasury bond was
determined as the sum of all the future cash flows discounted at 1.78% as at
March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively, which is the prevailing market rate of
instruments with similar maturities. The fair valuation is classified under Level 2 category.
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements in 2022 and
2021.
The table below presents the financial assets and liabilities whose carrying amount approximates their
fair value because of their short-term nature or their fair value cannot be reliably determined:
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
Financial assets at amortized cost:
Cash
Trade receivables
Interest receivables*
Dividend receivables*
Refundable deposits**

P
=508,712,048
389,331,571
235,955
7,950
10,496,668
P
=908,784,192

*Included under “Other current assets” account in the statements of financial position.
**Included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the statements of financial position.
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=P444,299,376
406,426,557
237,772
–

10,277,093
=861,240,798
P

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
Other financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Trade payables
Other current liabilities*

P
=418,701,412
1,865,206
P
=420,566,618

P
=331,096,290
6,492,533
P
=337,588,823

*Excluding statutory liabilities aggregating to P
=3.2 million and =P2.4 million as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively.

Current Financial Assets and Liabilities. The carrying amounts of cash, trade receivables, interest
receivable, trade payables, and other current liabilities (excluding statutory liabilities) approximate
their fair values due to their short-term nature.
Refundable Deposits. The carrying amount of refundable deposits approximates fair value.
The management believes that the effect of discounting the future receipts from these financial
instruments using the prevailing market rates is not significant.

6. Cash
This account consists of:
March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
P
=12,000
508,700,048
P
=508,712,048

Cash on hand
Cash in banks

December 31, 2021
(Audited)
=12,000
P
444,287,376
=444,299,376
P

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates.
Interest income were derived from:

Note
Cash in banks
Receivables from other brokers
Investment in a retail treasury bond

8
13

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
P
=365,332
20,625
435,683
P
=821,640

March 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
=321,519
P
30,723
435,683
=787,925
P

In compliance with SRC Rule 49.2-1 covering customer protection and custody of securities,
the Company maintains a special reserve bank account for the exclusive benefit of its customers
amounting to P
= 448.1 million and P
= 432.2 million as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
respectively. The Company’s reserve requirement is determined weekly based on the SEC’s prescribed
computation. As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company’s reserve accounts are
adequate to cover its reserve requirements.
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7. Financial Assets at FVPL
This account consists of:

Listed shares:
Local
Global

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)

December 31, 2021
(Audited)

P
=77,105,414
28,993,470
P
=106,098,884

=2,061
P
–
=2,061
P

The Company’s financial assets at FVPL as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 are carried at
fair values based on sources classified under the Level 1 category. The fair values of financial assets
at FVPL are based on prevailing quoted market prices or bidding dealer price quotations from active
market as at the reporting date (see Note 5).
Dividend income earned from financial assets at FVPL amounted to P
= 22,226 and P
= 840,144 as of
March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
Net trading gains on financial assets at FVPL consist of the following:

Realized fair value gains from:
Global trading
Local trading
Unrealized gains (losses) on fair value
changes on stocks held from:
Global trading
Local trading

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)

March 31, 2021
(Unaudited)

P
=13,980,961
17,864,851

=P56,672,270
26,006,369

(89,766)
706,652
P
=32,462,698

2,067,215
(158,727)
=84,587,127
P

8. Trade Receivables
This account consists of:
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
Receivables from:
Other brokers
Clearing house
Customers

P
=358,621,386
25,068,993
5,949,369
389,639,748
308,177
P
=389,331,571

Less allowance for credit losses

P
=364,995,138
40,881,235
1,052,336
406,928,709
502,152
P
=406,426,557

Receivables from other brokers pertain to the funds deposited with other brokers as at
March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 in order for the Company to trade in other foreign markets.
Interest income earned from receivables from other brokers amounted to P
=20,625 and P
=30,723 as of
March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
Receivables from clearing house are due and collectible after three business days from the transaction
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date. Accordingly, balances as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, were fully collected in April
2022 and January 2022, respectively.
Receivables from customers consist of amounts due within one (1) year from the reporting date as
follows:
March, 31, 2022 (Unaudited)
Security
Money
Valuation Balances
Long
Cash and fully secured accounts:
More than 250%
Between 200% and 250%
Between 150% and 200%
Between 100% and 150%
Partially secured accounts
Unsecured accounts
Less allowance for credit losses

P
=5,247,012
–
119,081
–
522,805
60,471
5,949,369
308,177
P
=5,641,192

P
=670,345,926
–
223,462
–
163,328
–
670,732,716
–
P
=670,732,716

December 31, 2021 (Audited)
Security
Money
Valuation Balances
Long
P
=481,884
–
–
2,610
248,650
319,192
1,052,336
502,152
P
=550,184

P
=42,458,796
–
–
2,980
103,407
–
42,565,183
–
P
=42,565,183

Collaterals related to receivables from customers pertain to listed equity securities amounting to
P
=670.3 million and P
=42.6 million as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. The fair
values of these securities are based on prevailing quoted market prices, which are usually the closing
prices from active markets as at the reporting date.
Provision for credit losses pertains to specific provisions on past due receivables. The movements in
the allowance for credit losses are as follows:
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
P
=502,152
=288,685
P
(193,975)
213,467
P
=308,177
=502,152
P

Balance at beginning of year
Provision for (reversal of) credit losses
Balance at end of year

9. Other Current Assets
This account consists of:
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
P
=3,766,895
=7,912,057
P
1,595,364
1,175,617
333,825
502,345
235,955
237,772
7,950
–
66,342
92,637
P
=6,006,331
P
=9,920,428

Excess tax credits
Prepayments
Advances to officers and employees
Interest receivables
Dividend receivables
Other receivables

Prepayments which are related to rentals, subscriptions, insurance, and taxes and licenses,
are amortized over the period covered by the payment.
Advances to officers and employees pertain to cash advances subject to liquidation within 30 days
after the transaction occurred.
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Other receivables are noninterest-bearing and generally settled within one (1) year.

10. Intangible Assets
This account consists of:
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
P
=1,961,585
P
=2,061,165
475,000
475,000
P
=2,436,585
P
=2,536,165

Software and licenses
Exchange trading right

Software and Licenses
The balance and movements of software and licenses as at and for the periods ended
March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Balance at end of year
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Amortization
Balance at end of year
Carrying Amount

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)

December 31, 2021
(Audited)

P
=4,140,327
–
4,140,327

P
=3,724,434
415,893
4,140,327

2,079,162
99,580
2,178,742
P
=1,961,585

1,704,751
374,411
2,079,162
= 2,061,165
P

Exchange Trading Right
Under the PSE rules, all exchange trading rights are pledged at its full value to PSE to secure the
payment of all debts due to other members of the exchange arising out of, or in connection with,
the present or future members’ contracts.
Republic Act (RA) No. 8799 entitled SRC to prescribe the conversion of PSE from a non-stock
corporation into a stock corporation (demutualization) effective August 8, 2001, pursuant to a
conversion plan approved by the SEC.
As a result of the conversion plan and on the basis of the relative fair values of the PSE shares and the
exchange trading right as of the time of the demutualization, the Company’s membership in the PSE,
originally amounting to =P1.0 million was bifurcated equally into (a) investment in PSE shares (classified
as financial assets at FVPL) and (b) exchange trading right. The investment in PSE shares was sold in
2020.
As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the carrying amount of the exchange trading right is
P
=475,000.
As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the latest transacted price of the exchange trading
right, as provided by the PSE, is P
=9.0 million.
No impairment loss was recognized on intangible assets as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.
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Details of depreciation and amortization are:

Note
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Investment property

11
12

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
P
=99,580
844,917
160,706
P
=1,105,203

March 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
=89,182
P
853,512
160,706
=1,103,400
P

11. Property and Equipment
The balances and movements of this account as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 are as
follows:
March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)

Note
Cost
Balances at beginning of year
Additions
Derecognition
Balances at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balances at beginning of year
Depreciation and amortization
Derecognition
Balances at end of year
Carrying Amounts

10

Office
Condominium
Units and
Improvements

Leasehold
Improvements

P
=21,900,275
–
–
21,900,275

P
=5,010,179
–
–
5,010,179

P
=21,853,774
47,768
(37,009)
21,864,533

P
=48,764,228
47,768
(37,009)
48,774,987

14,288,176
579,334
–
14,867,510
P
=7,032,765

2,147,354
126,782
–
2,274,136
P
=2,736,043

21,192,802
138,801
(37,009)
21,294,594
P
=569,939

37,628,332
844,917
(37,009)
38,436,240
P
=10,338,747

Furniture,
Fixtures, and
Office
Equipment

Total

December 31, 2021 (Audited)

Note
Cost
Balances at beginning of year
Additions
Derecognition
Balances at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balances at beginning of year
Depreciation and amortization
Derecognition
Balances at end of year
Carrying Amounts

10

Office
Condominium
Units and
Improvements

Leasehold
Improvements

Furniture,
Fixtures, and
Office
Equipment

Total

P
=19,682,472
2,217,803
–
21,900,275

P
=4,995,930
14,249
–
5,010,179

P
=22,244,358
356,737
(747,321)
21,853,774

P
=46,922,760
2,588,789
(747,321)
48,764,228

11,988,955
2,299,221
–
14,288,176
P
=7,612,099

1,641,069
506,285
–
2,147,354
P
=2,862,825

21,347,553
592,570
(747,321)
21,192,802
P
=660,972

34,977,577
3,398,076
(747,321)
37,628,332
P
=11,135,896

Additions to ROU assets (included as part of “Office condominium units and improvements” in
property and equipment) amounting to nil and P
=2.2 million as at March 31, 2022 and December 31
2021, respectively, are considered as noncash financial information in the statements of cash flows
(see Note 19).
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As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, cost of fully-depreciated assets still in use amounted
to P
=27.2 million and P
=27.0 million, respectively.

12. Investment Property
The balances and movements of this account are as follows:

Note
Cost
Balances at beginning and end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
Balances at beginning of year
Depreciation
Balances at end of year
Carrying Amount

10

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
P
=12,856,487

P
=12,856,487

2,571,292
160,706
2,731,998
P
=10,124,489

1,928,469
642,823
2,571,292
=10,285,195
P

Investment property pertains to the condominium unit which is currently held by the Company for
undetermined use.
The Company did not earn any rental income nor incurred any direct costs related to its investment
property as of March 31, 2022 and 2021.
The fair value of investment property amounted to P
= 35.8 million as at March 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021. The fair value was determined using the Sales Comparison Approach. This
approach compares sales of similar or substitute properties and related market data to establish an
estimated value. The fair value of investment property is categorized under Level 3 (significant
unobservable inputs) (see Note 5). As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the investment
property is not pledged as collateral.

13. Other Noncurrent Assets
This account consists of:

Note
Investment in a retail treasury bond
Refundable deposits from:
Clearing and Trade Guarantee Fund
(CTGF) contributions
Rental and utility
Others

19

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
P
=50,000,000
P
=50,000,000

10,413,443
83,225
309,187
P
=60,805,855

10,193,868
83,225
253,655
P
=60,530,748

On February 11, 2020, the Company purchased an investment in a retail treasury bond with a face
value amounting to P
= 50.0 million. The investment earns a coupon rate of 4.375% per annum,
payable on a quarterly basis, and will mature on February 11, 2023. Interest income earned from the
investment amounted to P
=0.4 million in March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively (see Note 6).
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Refundable deposit from CTGF pertains to the monthly contributions paid by the Company, as a
Clearing Member, to the CTGF maintained by the Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines
(SCCP). The monthly contribution is equivalent to 1/500 of 1% applied to the Clearing Member’s total
monthly turnover value less block sales and cross transactions of the same flag. The deposit is
refundable upon the cessation of the business and/or termination of the membership with the SCCP,
provided that all liabilities owing to the SCCP at the time of termination, whether actual or contingent,
shall have been satisfied or paid in full.

14. Trade Payables
This account consists of:
March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)
Security
Valuation Money Balance
Long
Payable to customers:
With money balance
Without money balance
Dividends payable to customers
Others

P
=382,517,881
–
382,517,881
1,339,506
34,844,025
P
=418,701,412

P
=7,173,425,352
2,006,844,049
9,180,269,401
–
–
P
=9,180,269,401

December 31, 2021 (Audited)
Security
Valuation Money Balance
Long
P
=329,083,693 P
=8,102,165,172
–
2,307,878,577
329,083,693 10,410,043,749
1,331,028
–
681,569
–
P
=331,096,290 P
=10,410,043,749

Payable to customers pertains to segregated bank balances received and held for customers in the
course of its regulated trading activities. These are noninterest-bearing and payable on demand.

15. Other Current Liabilities
This account consists of:

Due to the BIR
Accruals for:
Commissions
Professional fees
Others
Accounts payable
Trading fee payable
Social Security System, Pag-IBIG, and PhilHealth
payable

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
P
=2,935,146
P
=2,186,306

486,080
406,876
340,401
631,849

4,436,579
416,978
411,765
887,318
339,893

247,704
P
=5,048,056

244,076
P
=8,922,915

–

Due to the BIR comprises output tax, withholding tax, and percentage tax payable to the Philippine
BIR and are generally settled in the succeeding month from transaction date.
Accounts payable are noninterest-bearing and generally settled within one year.
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16. Related Party Transactions
The Company has transactions with its related parties in the ordinary course of business as follows:

Nature of Transactions
Trade Receivables
Affiliate with common officers and
stockholders

Amount of Transactions
Outstanding Balance
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 December 31,
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited) 2021 (Audited)

Commission income

P
=950,273

P
=96,719

P
=39,874,544

P
=43,583,778

Commission expense
Commission income

P
=785,971
6,809

=2,603,985
P
101,081

P
=136,454,500
31,559,751
P
=168,014,251

=115,736,798
P
28,715,757
=144,452,555
P

Short-term employee
benefits

P
=1,345,161

=1,371,994
P

P
=–

=–
P

Terms and Conditions
3-day; noninterest-bearing;
secured; settled in cash

Trade Payables
Affiliate with common officers and
stockholders
Key management personnel

3-day; noninterest-bearing;
secured; no guarantee;
settled in cash

Personnel Costs
Key management personnel

17. Personnel Costs
This account consists of:

Salaries and wages
Other benefits

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
P
=6,083,815
2,175,368
P
=8,259,183

March 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
P
=10,349,976
2,090,740
P
=12,440,716

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
P
=5,781,428
2,477,755
P
=8,259,183

March 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
P
=8,708,501
3,732,215
P
=12,440,716

Personnel costs were distributed as follows:

Cost of services
Operating expenses

18. Retirement Benefits
The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering substantially
all of its regular employees. The benefits are based on a certain percentage of the final monthly basic
salary for every year of credited service of the employees. The funded benefit obligation under the
defined benefit retirement plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. The benefits
to be received by the employees under the defined benefit retirement plan shall not be less than the
minimum mandated benefit under RA No. 7641, The Retirement Pay Law. There were no termination,
curtailment, or settlement as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.
Under the existing regulatory framework, RA 7641, The Retirement Pay Law, requires a provision for
retirement pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the
entity, provided however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and
other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require
minimum funding of the plan.
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19. Leases
The Company, as lessee, has lease agreements for its office spaces with lease terms ranging from
two (2) to three (3) years as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. The leases are
renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties. Refundable deposits on these lease agreements
amounted to P
=0.1 million as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively (see Note 13).
The balance and movements of the ROU assets (included as component of property and equipment)
are as follows:
Note
Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Balance at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation
Balance at end of year
Carrying Amount

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)

11

P
=5,214,257
–
5,214,257

=P3,024,453
2,189,804
5,214,257

3,017,931
344,602
3,362,533
P
=1,851,724

1,655,980
1,361,951
3,017,931
P
=2,196,326

The balance and movements of lease liabilities are as follows:
Note
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Interest expense
Lease payments
Balance at end of year

18

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
P
=2,208,628
P
=1,414,475
–
2,189,804
11,065
34,238
(359,883)
(1,429,889)
P
=1,859,810
P
=2,208,628

Lease liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
P
=1,305,258
554,552
P
=1,859,810

Current
Noncurrent

December 31, 2021
(Audited)
=1,287,355
P
921,273
=2,208,628
P

The Company recognized the following lease-related expenses:

Note
Depreciation
Interest expense on lease liabilities

18
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March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
P
=344,602
11,065
P
=355,667

March 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
= 339,665
P
12,697
=352,362
P

Future minimum lease commitments under non-cancellable leases as at March 31, 2022 are as
follows:
Within one (1) year
After one (1) year but no more than two (2) years

=1,238,206
P
650,650
=1,888,856
P

20. Income Taxes
The components of income taxes as reported in the statements of comprehensive income are as
follows:

Reported in Profit or Loss
Current tax expense (RCIT)
Deferred tax expense

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)

March 31, 2021
(Unaudited)

P
=4,163,839
2,332,350
P
=6,496,189

=10,171,798
P
1,444,310
=11,616,108
P

The components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets are as follows:
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
Deferred tax assets:
Net retirement benefit liability
Lease liabilities
Allowance for credit losses
Excess of cost over fair value of financial assets
at FVPL
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized foreign exchange gain
ROU asset
Excess of fair value over cost of financial assets
at FVPL
Others
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P
=4,935,044
464,953
77,044

=4,935,044
P
552,157
125,538

–
5,477,041

32,196
5,644,935

4,071,346
462,931

1,942,765
549,082

122,026
133,400
4,789,703
P
=687,338

–
133,400
2,625,247
=3,019,688
P

The reconciliation between the income tax expense based on statutory income tax rate and effective
income tax rate is as follows:

Income tax expense at statutory tax rate
Effect of change in tax rate in deferred tax
Effect of change in tax rate in current tax
Tax effects of:
Interest income already subjected to final tax
Dividend income exempt from tax
Nondeductible expenses
Others
Income tax at effective tax rate

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
P
=6,649,869
–
–

March 31, 2021
(Unaudited)
=10,076,848
P
2,329,898
(393,575)

(200,254)
(2,134)
40,177
8,531
P
=6,496,189

(189,301)
(207,762)
–
–
=11,616,108
P

On March 26, 2021, RA No. 11534 or the Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentive for Enterprises
(CREATE) Act was signed into law by the President of the Philippines. Under the CREATE law,
the Company’s Regular Corporate Income Tax (RCIT) is subjected to 25% instead of 30% income tax
rate. In addition, the minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) is subjected to 1% instead of 2% of gross
income for a period of three (3) years.

21. Earnings per Share
Basic and diluted EPS are computed as follows:

Net income attributable to common
stockholders of the Company
Divided by weighted average number of
outstanding common shares
Per share amounts: Basic and diluted EPS

March 31, 2022
(Unaudited)

March 31, 2021
(Unaudited)

P
=20,103,289

P
=28,691,283

5,354,167,083
P
=0.0038

5,000,000,000
P
=0.0057

Diluted EPS equals the basic EPS as the Company does not have any dilutive potential common shares
at the end of each of the periods presented.

22. Segment Reporting
Business Segments
The Company’s business segments consist of local and global trading.
Segment Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist primarily of operating cash,
receivables, financial assets at FVPL, property and equipment, investment property, and intangible
assets, net of allowances, accumulated depreciation and amortization, and impairment, and other
current and noncurrent assets. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist primarily
of trade payables and other current and noncurrent liabilities.
Major Customer
The Company does not have a single external customer from which sales revenue generated
amounted to 10% or more of the total revenues of the Company.
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Financial information about reportable segments are as follows:
March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)
Local Trading
Global Trading
REVENUES
Trading gains on financial assets at FVPL - net
Commissions
Interests
Dividends
SEGMENT REVENUES
COST OF SERVICES
GROSS PROFIT
OPERATING EXPENSES
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET INCOME

P
=18,571,503
5,093,121
801,015
8,537
24,474,176
9,388,960
15,085,216
(4,907,488)
201,572
10,379,300
2,441,144
P
=7,938,156

P
=13,891,195
–
20,625
13,689
13,925,509
5,128,489
8,797,020
(1,049,444)
8,472,602
16,220,178
4,055,045
P
=12,165,133

Total

P
=32,462,698
5,093,121
821,640
22,226
38,399,685
14,517,449
23,882,236
(5,956,932)
8,674,174
26,599,478
6,496,189
P
=20,103,289

SEGMENT ASSETS

P
=706,926,992

P
=387,614,856

P
=1,094,541,848

SEGMENT LIABILITIES

P
=445,349,452

P
=–

P
=445,349,452

P
=47,768

P
=–

P
=47,768

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES Fixed assets
CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM:
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

P
=28,196,636
(47,768)
(42,541,117)

(P
=6,284,909)
–
–

P
=21,911,727
(47,768)
(42,541,117)

December 31, 2021 (Audited)
Local Trading
Global Trading

Total

REVENUES
Trading gains on financial assets at FVPL - net
Commissions
Interests
Dividends
SEGMENT REVENUES
COST OF SERVICES
GROSS PROFIT (LOSS)
OPERATING EXPENSES
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET INCOME

P
=68,681,727
15,593,189
2,902,855
2,342,852
89,520,623
46,938,806
42,581,817
(27,137,827)
(196,115)
15,247,875
3,092,501
P
=12,155,374

P
=40,709,268
–
115,307
247,903
41,072,478
45,469,664
(4,397,186)
(4,800,515)
20,256,314
11,058,613
3,069,117
P
=7,989,496

P
=109,390,995
15,593,189
3,018,162
2,590,755
130,593,101
92,408,470
P
=38,184,631
(31,938,342)
20,060,199
26,306,488
6,161,618
P
=20,144,870

SEGMENT ASSETS

P
=583,160,976

P
=364,995,138

P
=948,156,114

SEGMENT LIABILITIES

P
=361,968,007

P
=–

P
=361,968,007

P
=814,878

P
=–

P
=814,878

P
=18,733,090
(814,878)
46,956,494

(P
=43,614,354)
–
–

(P
=24,881,264)
(814,878)
46,956,494

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES Fixed assets
CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM:
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
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SCHEDULE I

CTS GLOBAL EQUITY GROUP, INC.
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF
FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS UNDER REVISED SRC RULE 68

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

2.38
P
=1,010,148,834
425,054,726

2.58
P
=770,189,656
298,767,120

0.05
445,349,452

0.09
P
=29,794,683
321,196,596

Debt-to-equity ratio
Total liabilities
Total equity

0.69
P
=445,349,452
649,192,396

0.59
=321,196,596
P
542,147,010

Asset-to-equity ratio
Total assets
Total equity

1.63

P
=865,496,317
529,535,717

1.45
P
=105,543,086
72,732,380

Interest rate coverage ratio
Income (loss) before interest and taxes
Interest expense

2,992.02
P
=33,106,732
11,065

4,090.43
P
=51,936,196
12,697

Return on Equity
After-tax income (loss)
Total equity

0.03
P
=20,103,289
649,192,396

0.05
P
=28,691,283
542,147,010

Return on assets
After-tax income (loss)
Total assets

0.02
P
=20,103,289
1,094,541,848

0.03
P
=28,691,283
863,343,606

1,154%
46%
3,097%

1,045%
41%
2,547%

Current/liquidity ratio
Current assets
Current liabilities
Solvency ratio
After-tax income (loss) before depreciation
Total liabilities

P
=21,208,492

Other relevant ratios
RBCA ratio
Ratio of AI to NLC
Ratio of Core Equity to ORR
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